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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Thacher Building is a three-story Romanesque-styled commercial 
Structure facing south on Eighth street, approximately one-half block 
east of Kansas avenue, which is Topeka's primary commercial street. 
The rectangular shaped building measures 50 by 150 feet and has a 
basement, which is partially above ground level.

The front of the Thacher Building features an interesting display 
of cut and rough hewn Cottonwood limestone. The west exterior wall is 
of brick and the east and north walls of rubble stone.

The first story is composed of three Romanesque arches with engaged 
columns displaying ornate hand carved detail. Carved leaves are 
featured in the decoration on the arches. A flight of steps leads 
from the ground level to the first floor entrance which is recessed 
in the smaller center arched opening. Two carved stone heads, with 
a non-human appearance, are placed on either side of the center arch 
where it connects with the others. Under the two flanking arches are 
fan windows sitting over double sash divisions. Metal columns separate 
the windows within these arched openings.

The second and third floors are marked by four engaged circular 
stone piers, one located at each corner and one each to the left and 
right of the center axis. On the bottom of the stone piers are 
carved large bunches of grapes and leaves. Windows on the second 
floor, which are located in rectangular openings, are double hung and 
have one piece stone lintels. Separating the windows of the second and 
third floors is an alternating pattern of rough cut and dressed stone. 
The third floor windows, which are placed in Romanesque arched openings, 
are double hung. The transom openings on both the second and third 
floor windows have been covered with metal.

The top o,f the building in the front features a parapet with a 
balustrade. Directly below the parapet is a checkerboard pattern of 
rough cut and dressed stone running the width of the facade.

Two carved human heads are found on the third floor t nestled in 
carved leaves at the ends of the carved stone arch over the center 
windows It is not now known who these carved heads were supposed to 
represent.

The basement floor now serves as the main business area with the 
upper floors used for warehousing and storage. Various partitions 
have been added and considerable remodeling done to the basement.

Exterior changes include the removal of the finials atop the 
four engaged piers, covering the second and third floor transoms with 
metal, the natural weathering of some of the stone carving and the 
changes to the windows and doors on the basement level. Otherwise, the 
Thacher Building looks much the same as it did originally.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Thacher Building was constructed in 1888 for Timothy Dwight 
Thacher at a time when Topeka was experiencing a great building boom. 
Various estimates placed the cost of the large commercial structure at 
$30,000 to $40,000. The architect was John G. Haskell, one of the 
earliest and most active professional architects in Kansas.

T. D. Thacher was a long-time Kansas newspaper man and a Republican 
politician. He had come to Kansas in 1857, published a free-state paper 
at Lawrence and was an instrumental figure in the formation of the 
Republican party in Kansas in 1859. He served one term in the state 
legislature in 1874 and was selected by the legislature to serve as 
the state printer from 1881 to 1887. Although he never held a major 
elective office, his voice was influential in the Kansas Republican 
councils.

Thacher erected the large structure for the use of the Hall and 
0'Donald Lithographing Company. That firm was established in 1887 but 
had prospered so rapidly that within one year it employed mare than 
100 workers and occupied most of the space in the Thacher Building. 
The fourth floor of the structure had a hall which, was used by lodges 
and for other social and cultural activities.

In 1899 the building was purchased by Crane and Co., a printing 
and publishing house which had been established In Topeka by George W. 
Crane in 1868. The building interior was remodeled to meet the new 
occupant's needs. For a time some offices were rented to other concerns, 
such as George Palmer f undertaker, the Sanborn Map Co., and the Polk- 
Radges Directory Co., but by 1926 Crane and Co. was the sole occupant, 
as it Is today.

The Thacher Building is one of a very few Topeka commercial struc^ 
tures whose facades have survived basically unaltered from the boom and 
expansion years of the 1880's. The Topeka Dally Capital of September 30, 
1888 f in describing the structure stated, "The style is a bold and 
artistic expression of the popular Romanesque, and embraces a combination 
of some of its choicest features, presenting a magnificent front." 
Almost 90 years later that assessment still stands. The Thacher Building 
^remains one of the architectural legacies of 19th century Topeka 
architecture and craftsmanship. The building is also significant for 
Its design by John G. Haskell, a prominent 19th century Kansas architect, 
and for the contributions its occupants (printers and office suppliers)

to the commercial development of the city.
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